
EXTRAORDINARY
Meeting of the

TOWER HAMLETS
COUNCIL

__________________________________

Wednesday, 23 May 2018 at 6.30 p.m.
_______________________________________

A G E N D A
______________________________________

VENUE
Council Chamber, 1st Floor,
Town Hall, Mulberry Place,

5 Clove Crescent,
London E14 2BG

Democratic Services Contact:
Matthew Mannion, Committee Services Manager, Democratic Services
Tel: 020 7364 4651, E-mail:matthew.mannion@towerhamlets.gov.uk

Page 1



Directorate of Governance

Democratic Services
Tower Hamlets Town Hall
Mulberry Place
5 Clove Crescent
London E14 2BG

Tel 020 7364 4651
Fax 020 7364 3232

www.towerhamlets.gov.uk

TO THE MAYOR AND COUNCILLORS OF THE LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER 
HAMLETS

You are summoned to attend a meeting of the Council of the London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets to be held in COUNCIL CHAMBER - TOWN HALL MULBERRY PLACE at 
6.30 p.m. on WEDNESDAY, 23 MAY 2018 

Will Tuckley
Chief Executive

Page 2



Public Information
Attendance at meetings.
The public are welcome to attend meetings of the Council. However seating is limited and 
offered on a first come first served basis and meetings tend to reach full capacity.

Audio/Visual recording of meetings. 
The Council will be filming the meeting for presentation on the website. Should you wish to 
film the meeting, please contact the Committee Officer shown on the agenda front page. 

Mobile telephones
Please switch your mobile telephone on to silent mode whilst in the meeting. 

Access information for the Town Hall, Mulberry Place.     

Bus: Routes: D3, D6, D7, D8, 15, 108, and115 all 
stop near the Town Hall. 
Docklands Light Railway: Nearest stations are: 
East India: Head across the bridge and then 
through the complex to the Town Hall, Mulberry 
Place 
Blackwall station: Across the bus station then turn 
right to the back of the Town Hall complex, 
through the gates and archway to the Town Hall. 
Tube: The closest tube stations are Canning 
Town and Canary Wharf 
Car Parking: There is limited visitor pay and 

display parking at the Town Hall (free from 6pm)

If you are viewing this on line:(http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/content_pages/contact_us.aspx) 

Meeting access/special requirements. 
The Town Hall is accessible to people with special needs. There are accessible toilets, lifts 
to venues. Disabled parking bays and an induction loop system for people with hearing 
difficulties are available.  Documents can be made available in large print, Braille or audio 
version. For further information, contact the Officers shown on the front of the agenda 

Fire alarm
If the fire alarm sounds please leave the building immediately by the nearest available fire 
exit without deviating to collect belongings. Fire wardens will direct you to the exits and to 
the fire assembly point. If you are unable to use the stairs, a member of staff will direct you 
to a safe area. The meeting will reconvene if it is safe to do so, otherwise it will stand 
adjourned.
Electronic agendas reports and minutes.
Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be 
found on our website from day of publication.  

To access this, click www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee and search for 
the relevant committee and meeting date. 

Agendas are available at the Town Hall, Libraries, Idea Centres and One 
Stop Shops and on the Mod.Gov, iPad and Android apps.  

QR code for 
smart phone 
users

Page 3

http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee


LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS

COUNCIL 

WEDNESDAY, 23 MAY 2018

6.30 p.m.

PAGE
NUMBER

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

To receive any apologies for absence.

2. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
INTERESTS 

5 - 8

To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those 
restricting Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 
of the Local Government Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the 
Monitoring Officer.

3. NOMINATION REPORT - COMMANDER JOHN LUDGATE 9 - 14

Council to consider the report of the Freedom of the Borough Panel 
proposing Commander John Ludgate be awarded the Freedom of the 
Borough.

Page 4



DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE MONITORING OFFICER

This note is for guidance only.  For further details please consult the Members’ Code of Conduct 
at Part 5.1 of the Council’s Constitution.   

Please note that the question of whether a Member has an interest in any matter, and whether or 
not that interest is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, is for that Member to decide.  Advice is 
available from officers as listed below but they cannot make the decision for the Member.  If in 
doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to attending a meeting.  

Interests and Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs)

You have an interest in any business of the authority where that business relates to or is likely to 
affect any of the persons, bodies or matters listed in section 4.1 (a) of the Code of Conduct; and 
might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-being or financial position of yourself, a 
member of your family or a person with whom you have a close association, to a greater extent 
than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward affected.

You must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of any such interest, for inclusion in the Register 
of Members’ Interests which is available for public inspection and on the Council’s Website.

Once you have recorded an interest in the Register, you are not then required to declare that 
interest at each meeting where the business is discussed, unless the interest is a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest (DPI).

A DPI is defined in Regulations as a pecuniary interest of any of the descriptions listed at 
Appendix A overleaf.  Please note that a Member’s DPIs include his/her own relevant interests 
and also those of his/her spouse or civil partner; or a person with whom the Member is living as 
husband and wife; or a person with whom the Member is living as if they were civil partners; if the 
Member is aware that that other person has the interest.   

Effect of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest on participation at meetings

Where you have a DPI in any business of the Council you must, unless you have obtained a 
dispensation from the authority's Monitoring Officer following consideration by the Dispensations 
Sub-Committee of the Standards Advisory Committee:-

- not seek to improperly influence a decision about that business; and
- not exercise executive functions in relation to that business.

If you are present at a meeting where that business is discussed, you must:-
- Disclose to the meeting  the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting 

or when the interest becomes apparent, if later; and 
- Leave the room (including any public viewing area) for the duration of consideration and 

decision on the item and not seek to influence the debate or decision 

When declaring a DPI, Members should specify the nature of the interest and the agenda item to 
which the interest relates.  This procedure is designed to assist the public’s understanding of the 
meeting and to enable a full record to be made in the minutes of the meeting.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Where you have a DPI in any business of the authority which is not included in the Member’s 
register of interests and you attend a meeting of the authority at which the business is 
considered, in addition to disclosing the interest to that meeting, you must also within 28 days 
notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest for inclusion in the Register. 

Further advice

For further advice please contact:-
Asmat Hussain, Corporate Director, Governance and Monitoring Officer. Tel 020 7364 4800

Page 6



APPENDIX A:  Definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest

(Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, Reg 2 and Schedule)

Subject Prescribed description
Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vacation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on 
for profit or gain.

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other 
than from the relevant authority) made or provided within the 
relevant period in respect of any expenses incurred by the 
Member in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the 
election expenses of the Member.
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union 
within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a 
body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and 
the relevant authority—
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works 
are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the 
relevant authority.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the Member’s knowledge)—
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where—
(a) that body (to the Member’s knowledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and
(b) either—

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the 
total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth 
of the total issued share capital of that class.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Council

23 May 2018

Report of: Asmat Hussain – Corporate Director, 
Governance

Classification:
Unrestricted

Report of the Freedom of the Borough Panel: Nomination for Freedom of the 
Borough

Originating Officer(s) Matthew Mannion, Committee Services Manager
Rushena Miah, Committee Services Officer

Wards affected All wards

Executive Summary
This report presents a nominee for the Freedom of the Borough Award. It outlines 
the policy context for awarding a Freedom of the Borough and explains how the 
process for nomination and selection was carried out. It asks Council to make a 
decision on whether the nominee selected by the Freedom of the Borough Panel 
should be awarded the honorary title. 

Recommendations:

The Council is recommended to: 

1. Award Commander John Ludgate the Freedom of the Borough. 

1. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS

1.1 The Council is empowered by section 249(5) of the Local Government Act 
1972 to admit as Honorary Freemen or Honorary Freewomen of the borough 
‘persons of distinction and persons who have in the opinion of the Council, 
rendered eminent services to the borough’.

1.2 In November 2017, the Council’s cross-party Freedom of the Borough Panel 
began the process of seeking and reviewing nominations with the intention of 
awarding a Freedom of the Borough. The Panel was chaired by the Speaker 
of the Council, Councillor Sabina Akhtar and also included the Mayor, 
previous Speakers and co-opted Members.

1.3 The Panel received six nominations and determined that out of the six, one 
nomination met the criteria to award a Freedom of the Borough. The 
shortlisted nominee was Commander John Ludgate. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



2. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

2.1 The Council could decide to not award John Ludgate the Freedom of the 
Borough. 

3. DETAILS OF THE REPORT

3.1 The award of the honorary freedom does not in itself confer any rights on the 
recipient but conferring the title of Honorary Freeman or Honorary Freewoman 
is the highest honour that the Council of a borough can bestow and as such is 
given only rarely. In Tower Hamlets, no such award has been made since 
1999. 

3.2 Criteria for bestowing the honour:
The Freedom of the Borough must be awarded at a specifically convened 
meeting of the Council.  As the award is rarely bestowed it should be reserved 
only for the most exceptional persons. The award should recognise 
exceptional achievement or service by an individual that has, for example:

• Demonstrated exceptional achievements or service to the community. 
• Made a real difference in their field of work or their community.
• Brought distinction to the borough or enhanced its reputation.
• Exemplified sustained and selfless voluntary service.
• Demonstrated innovation or entrepreneurship which has delivered 

benefits to the Borough.
• Carried the respect of and inspired his/her peers.
• Significantly improved the lot of those who have suffered disadvantage.
• Promoted community cohesion
• Contributed to the borough beyond the call of duty in a way that stands 

out above others.

3.3.     About the nominee Commander John McKay LUDGATE, RD*, DL RNR

Commander John Ludgate is the former Deputy Lieutenant of Tower Hamlets. 
He is a Royal Naval Officer and was a chartered accountant with Barclays 
Bank where he advised small local start-ups. 

John’s father was a Master Mariner, who sailed the Bay of Bengal, 
Chittagong, Dhaka and Calcutta. John himself was born in Rangoon. He 
followed his father’s example and joined the Royal Naval Reserve in 1959. 
Between 1992-1995 he was in Command of the HMS President in Wapping.  
John retired from his career in accounting in 1996 to pursue voluntary 
endeavours. He is passionate about protecting and serving communities, 
youth education and supporting young people to fulfil their potential in the 
uniformed services. 

John’s interests include sailing, Scottish country dancing, Maritime History 
and the National Maritime Museum and Observatory.

Page 10



Each Deputy Lieutenant is responsible for one of the 32 boroughs of greater 
London and is appointed by the Lord Lieutenant. One of the key functions of 
the role is to supervise functions attended by the Royal Family. John was 
appointed Deputy Lieutenant by the Lord Lieutenant Sir Ken Olisa in 1994. 

John’s duties as Deputy Lieutenant have included overseeing royal visits in 
the borough, advising the Mayor, Speaker and councillors on protocol and 
engagement with the royals and validating awards such as the Queen’s 
Award for Enterprise and Voluntary Service.

John had garnered the respect and admiration of many colleagues at Tower 
Hamlets. Here is what a few Members had to say about him:

Councillor Denise Jones: John Ludgate served the Queen in a voluntary 
and unpaid capacity as her Deputy Lord Lieutenant in Tower Hamlets for 22 
years, he has always behaved in a professional dignified manner.  

He was also very supportive of the Outdoor Activity Centre at Shadwell Basin 
and of fundraising for the preservation of the national historic steamship SS 
Robin built in 1890. His interest in naval history influenced the placing of the 
historic ship’s bell from HMS Crane in the foyer of Mulberry Place. 

He was a strong advocate for encouraging young people in the borough to 
engage with the navy and ships, and with the Territorial Army. When I was 
Leader of the council he invited me with local young people to the shore 
establishment of the Royal Navy Reserve, HMS President in my ward in 
Wapping to find out what a career in the Navy is all about.

Lesley Pavitt- former Speaker: I could not have had a kinder and informative 
man to guide me through the intricacies of the role.  He was very keen that 
youngsters in the borough were able to have opportunities and was a great 
supporter of the various cadet Corps and encouraged me to be involved.  He 
had a great knowledge of many organisations in Tower Hamlets, it helped that 
he had been based at HMS President for many years.  

Sabina Akhtar – Speaker: I first met John around 2010 at a Civic Award 
Ceremony. I was interested in politics and used to attend Council meetings 
and events to observe the democratic process. I was not an elected councillor 
at the time but I recall speaking to John and him explaining what his role was 
as Deputy Lieutenant. He played a role in encouraging me to enter politics 
because he said he could see me ‘going far’ which was a heartening 
compliment. 

When I was elected Speaker, John helped me understand council protocol 
and procedures. This was extremely useful in my role as Speaker because it 
carries a ceremonial significance. John was extremely knowledgeable about 
British history and customs so I felt like I could always go to him for advice on 
how to conduct myself at events.

Page 11



Throughout John’s time at Tower Hamlets he was highly regarded by former 
speakers and councillors cross party. He had a friendly demeanour and 
remained non-partisan in his public duties.

John is a strong believer in equipping today’s youth for the future and has 
supported the borough’s Police Cadets, Boys’ Brigade, Girl Guiding, Army 
Cadets, Sea Scouts and the TH 31 Squadron Air Cadets, which in Dec 2016 
were named the best Air Cadet Squadron in the country. John is the Vice 
Chairman of the Marine Society and Sea Cadets, a leading maritime charity 
for youth development and lifelong learning.  

In 2004 John was invited by the Mayor of Tower Hamlets, Councillor Abdul 
Aziz Sardar, on a delegation to Bangladesh which included audiences with 
Sheikh Hasina MP and Begum Khaleda Zia MP. The trip was an insightful and 
inspirational experience broadening his knowledge and understanding of the 
Bangladeshi community in Tower Hamlets. 

It was during this visit to Bangladesh that he learned about THESIS (Tower 
Hamlets Educational Support in Sylhet) Trust, an international development 
charity that supports women’s education, healthcare, welfare and employment 
in Bangladesh. One of its flagship projects is its partnership work with Madan 
Mohan College. The project provided safe accommodation and transport to 
the students to enable them to complete their studies free of street violence or 
intimidation. The work of the charity made an impact on John who became a 
Trustee of THESIS shortly after his visit. 

Upon reflection of his service in Tower Hamlets, John has said that Tower 
Hamlets is an inspirational borough reflecting all that is best in a modern 
urban aspirational community, being awarded the Freedom of the Borough 
would be an accolade beyond measure and one that he would treasure for 
life. 

3.3 Process for making the Award: It is for the Council to determine who should 
be awarded the Freedom of the Borough.  

3.4 It is proposed that the Speaker of the Council, as Chair of the Freedom of the 
Borough Panel, will introduce the nomination. The debate will then be opened 
up to any Member who wishes to speak on the proposal. 

3.5 When Members have debated the nomination the meeting will move to the 
vote. The nominee needs to secure a two-third majority of those present and 
voting to be accepted for the Award. 

4. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The Panel conducted an open nominations process. All nominations received 
were considered by the Panel and shortlisted based on predefined selection 
criteria.  

Page 12



5. OTHER STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS

5.1 None. 

6. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

6.1 None specific to this report.

7. COMMENTS OF LEGAL SERVICES 

7.1 The title of honorary freeman or honorary freewoman may be granted by a 
London borough council under section 249(5) of the Local Government Act 
1972 to persons of distinction and to persons who have, in the opinion of the 
authority, rendered eminent services to the borough.

7.2 Under section 249(7) of the 1972 Act, the title can only be given by a 
resolution of full Council, at a meeting specifically convened for the purpose 
and the resolution must be passed by not less than two-thirds of the members 
who vote on it.

7.3 Under section 249(10), the admission of a person as honorary freeman or 
honorary freewoman does not carry any right to attend meetings of the council 
or its committees or to claim any allowances for attendance at meetings.

____________________________________

Linked Reports, Appendices and Background Documents

Linked Report
 None. 

Appendices
 None.

Background Documents – Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)(Access 
to Information)(England) Regulations 2012

 None. 

Officer contact details for documents:
 N/A

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS
	3 NOMINATION REPORT - COMMANDER JOHN LUDGATE

